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	Q#
	Topic
	Question
	Answer

	1
	Classified Work 
	Will any of the work be in a classified environment?
	Possibly.  Requirements will be TO specific.  Certain TOs may require DD254s.  Only contractors with DD254s will be considered for classified work.

	2
	Classified Work
	Will any of the work require a Facilities Clearance at the Secret or Top Secret level?
	Possibly.  Requirements will be TO specific.  Certain TOs may require DD254s.  Only contractors with DD254s will be considered for classified work.

	3
	Classified Work
	Will any of the work require a Secret or Top Secret level clearance?
	Possibly.  Requirements will be TO specific.  Certain TOs may require DD254s.  Only contractors with DD254s will be considered for classified work.

	4
	Classified Work
	Will any work in classified areas be available to small businesses?
	All contractors with DD254s will be considered for classified work.

	5
	Contracting
	Section L ITO, 3.4.2.  Request in part that contact information and facility codes be listed for Government Paying Office.  We are paid by a number of paying offices, including multiple DFAS offices.  Do you want all of these listed?
	Yes.  Please include all of them.  Please start with the DFAS offices and include additional payment offices on a separate sheet with the same format.

	6
	Contracting
	Section L ITO, 3.9 (d) references Exhibits A, B, C.  These are not included.  Will the government provide these with the contract, by task order, or with the RFP?
	Blanket CDRLs will be provided with the RFP.  TO specific CDRLs will be provided with each TO.

	7
	Contracting
	Section L ITO, 5.3.3.  Please clarify that the 25% rule applies to the total value of the task order or to the work to be subcontracted under the task order.
	The 25% has been deleted.  We want PPI for the entire team.

	8
	Contracting
	Section M, 2 (c) states "An offeror may only be awarded one contract."  Will this allow a company to also be a team member (subcontractor) with a different offeror which also receives a contract award?  That is, can one company be both a prime and a subcontractor and be eligible for both awards?
	Yes, one company may be both a prime contractor and a subcontractor with a different prime.

	9
	Contracting
	Section M, 2.3 (m) Past Performance: Is paragraph (m) applicable to Small Business Offerors?
	Yes.

	10
	Evaluation
	Section L ITO, 4.5 (b) Experience -- In the required table, please explain what information is expected under the "Number" column.  The other column headings (e.g., dollar value, start date/end date, % complete) pertain to an individual project. It is envisioned that each row of the table would present information on an individual project.  Therefore, we do not know what the "Number" field corresponds to. Please clarify.
	Section M, para2.1.3 (b) refers to five types of projects.  The number column in Section L, para 4.5 (b) refers to the number of projects in each of the areas.  This is meant to be a “summary”.  For example, you could list 50 LTO/LTM projects, 10 landfill caps, etc. 



	11
	Evaluation
	Section L ITO, 4.5.   Please clarify that “relevant contracts” may include ongoing work that is less than 80% completed.
	For purposes of this solicitation projects that are less than 80% complete will not be counted as relevant contracts.

	12
	Evaluation
	Section L ITO, Definitions.  Please clarify the definition of contract.  Does this mean a large multi-task order ID/IQ?
	Please reference Section L, Information to Offerors (ITO) Definitions.   Relevant Contracts: To be considered relevant, the project must be  comparable in size, scope and complexity, and be substantially complete.  A project may be a contract, task order or delivery order for government or commercial clients.  Discrete task orders under a multi-task order ID/IQ would be considered a project and depending on scope, could be considered a relevant contract.

	13
	Evaluation
	Section L ITO, Definitions:  Please explain the definition of Projects – RFP states that this includes contracts, task orders, or delivery orders.  Is a multiple-task order contract considered one or several projects?  Similarly, we assume the term Relevant Contracts actually refers to relevant projects – ie, individual sites or task orders, not multiple-task order contracts?
	Each task order under a multiple-task order contract would be a discrete project.  Relevant contracts refer to the discrete task orders rather than the multiple-task order contract.  Relevant means they are comparable in size, scope and complexity.

	14
	Evaluation
	Section M, 1.2 (2) states: “evaluation factors other the price (Mission Capability, Proposal Risk, and Past Performance) when combined are significantly more important then Price”.  Section M 1.2 (4) states “Price is significantly less important than Mission Capability, Proposal Risk, or Past Performance.

Question: Is Price significantly less important than the combined weight of Mission Capability, Proposal Risk, and Past Performance as stated in M.1.2 (2) or is Price significantly less important the each of the three evaluation factors separately as stated in M1.2 (4)?
	Price is less important than each of the other three factors.  Taken in aggregate Price is significantly less important than the other 3 factors.

	15
	Evaluation
	Section M, 1.2 (6).  Is this statement supposed to refer to Subfactors 1.4 (Mission Capability - SDB Participation) and 2.4 (Proposal Risk – SDB Participation)?  Otherwise, this section is in direct conflict with Subsection 1.2.(5).
	Section M 1.2 (6) is supposed to refer to Subfactors 1.4 and 2.4.  The type has been corrected.

	16
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.1 (a) Request you explain how AFCEE is using the term “implement”. Is the intent “start-up” or “to accomplish/execute—the full spectrum of the SOW?”
	The intent is to accomplish/execute the full spectrum of requirements without a startup or ramp-up period after award.

	17
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.1 (a) stipulates that, to meet the subfactor, the Prime MUST have sufficient personnel/resource to implement a WERC contract.  Our understanding is that offerors will only be successful if they can implement the entire SOW.  

Question: Do you mean to say that the Prime must have the personnel/resources to implement the entire SOW on its own without teaming partners?


	No.  However, the prime must have sufficient personnel/resources to execute and manage the entire SOW.  This does not mean the prime has to do all of the work.  However, it does mean the Prime has to have the resources to effectively manage team members to get all of the work done.

	18
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.1 (c) –The RFP states that the Team must have a minimum of 20 established offices, yet adding up the minimum number for Pacific Rim, Europe and the CONUS time zones yields a minimum of 14 total offices.  Please reconcile these 2 statements of the minimum number of offices required.
	A total of 20 offices are required.  However, only 14 of the 20 have specific location requirements.

	19
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.3 (a) Other than the 10 environmental remediation projects, do the other projects (i.e. innovative technology, minor construction, or construction)need to be environmental?
	Yes. We have clarified 2.1.3 (b) (2) to read 2 innovative technology environmental projects.  Minor construction, construction, and housing projects do not have to be environmental.

	20
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.3 (a). Please clarify what is meant by “Team demonstrates 2 years relevant contracts with the last 5 years.”
	Teams are scored in this evaluation subfactor.  The team must have a minimum of 2 years relevant experience that was completed within the last 5 years that demonstrates simultaneous tasks.  No single team member has to have relevant experience around the world as long as the team in total has relevant experience in the geographical areas listed.

Section M, 2.1.3 (a) will be corrected to read “Team demonstrates 2 years relevant contracts completed within the last 5 years…”

	21
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.3 (b) (5) “1 housing project > 50 units each”  please clarify the type of housing project.  For example is this a design/build of new units?  Environmental remediation of existing units for lead or asbestos?  Where is housing in the SOW?
	The work is not meant to be just lead-based paint or asbestos remediation, but covers Whole House upgrades (gutting and remodeling), new construction, demolition, or major renovations.  Housing is covered in the Traditional section of the SOW (Draft SOW #2, Section 1.0 Scope, and Section 9, Traditional Requirements)

	22
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.3 (b) and 2.2:  Will AFCEE automatically assign a higher risk to a Prime who has not had a previous working relationship with their “housing” teaming subcontractor?  If no, what factors will enable such a Prime to mitigate this higher rating?


	New relationships will always have a higher risk than mature ones.  However, management approach can ameliorate that risk.  It is up to the Prime to detail what their approach is to working with team members and how it has worked in the past with other subs.  Additionally, risk will be assigned for each subfactor, not just for the housing sub-element.  Therefore, the housing requirement is just a small piece of the entire experience subfactor.



	23
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.3 (b) Can we submit individual task orders from a program as a project completed in the past 5 years?
	Yes, however to be considered relevant, the scope must be comparable in size, scope and complexity, and must be substantially complete.

	24
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.3 (b) It is our understanding that few of the existing AFCEE Construction contractors have housing experience as a prime.  To meet the requirements of the WERC SOW, it will necessary to team with a firm that does housing work.  


	You do not have to meet the requirements in the SOW.  You have to meet the requirements in the solicitation, specifically Sections L & M for evaluation purposes.  



	25
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.3 (b) To simplify, we request that AFCEE consider changing the word “completed” and “partially complete” to “substantially completed”.  
	M.2.1.3(b) was changed to read “Team demonstrates the following minimum substantially completed relevant contracts…”

	26
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.3 (b).  There is no mention or credit for fueling projects (SOW Section 8.7) or UXO projects (SOW Section 8.11); but a requirement for Housing Project >50 units (subsection (b)(5) is listed, even though Housing is not specifically addressed in the SOW.  

Does AFCEE envision fueling or UXO projects under this contract?  

Does AFCEE envision large housing projects under this contract?  

What type of work is AFCEE interested in for the housing project(s): design, new construction, gutting and remodeling, demolition, and/or environmental work such as asbestos and lead based paint?
	The evaluation criteria are still under review and may be changed.  We will consider adding UXO and fuels requirements.

Yes.  Please see Draft SOW #2, Section 8.7 Fueling Systems, and Section 8.11 Ordnance Removal and Support.

Possibly.  Requirements will be TO specific.

New construction, gutting and remodeling (major renovation or Whole House upgrades), demolition. The work is not meant to be just environmental such as asbestos and lead based paint.


	27
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.3 (e) In preparation for this contract, we have determined the following marketplace conditions regarding PBCC. First, AFCEE has awarded most PBCC TOs to large businesses. Second, clients outside of AFCEE (including governmental and commercial), usually have bonding and special insurance requirements for their PBCC contracts. Third, the bonding requirements are limiting for small businesses since the 9-11 event.   Specifically, several of the surety companies that historically provide support to small construction business will no longer issue bonds to small businesses.  Fourth, the insurance requirements in this contract instrument limit the small business industry.  This is due to the insurance companies’ current policy of preferring to limit their insurance coverage to large businesses only.  The best recent example of this is the current situation at the Omaha Corps of Engineers where it appears no small businesses are able to bid on a PBCC contract.  Finally, the government’s current policy is to require a firm that bid on a PBCC project to maintain the full value of its bond until the project is complete thus not enabling the company to get release of the construction bond.  For a small business, a single PBCC project has the impact of tying up a significant portion of their total bonding capacity.

Question: Regarding PBCC, what is AFCEE’s motivation for using this type of contracting mechanism and evaluation criteria for small businesses given the unusual burdens associated with insurance, bonding and limited past performance history?


	Performance-based contracting methods (see FAR subpart 37.6) are the preferred method for acquiring services (Public Law 106-398, section 821). This applies only to service contracts and most of AFCEE's contracts are construction or A&E contracts.  Despite not being required to use this technique its value is such that AFCEE is developing its own version of Performance-Based Contracting that is called End State contracting.  End State contracting is new to AFCEE and only a small part of its total business.  However, with the current policy emphasis, End State contracting will likely increase in the future.  We are trying out various contracting methods that fit the End State contracting model to determine the most effective and fair way to implement it.  We are carefully looking at the impact End State contracting has on our contractors and on the AFCEE business model.  Our motivation for using End State contracting is to harnesses innovations/creativity of the private sector, to focus contractor efforts on end-objectives and regulatory closure, to maximize potential for system optimization and expedited site closure, and to align contract incentives with AF priorities.  In other words, we are trying to get a better product at less cost by stepping out of the way.  We will carefully look for ways to increase small business participation in this process and are interested in any suggestions you may have.



	28
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.1.3 (e) Very few firms have bid and won a PBC2 task order under AFCEE contracts and even fewer reached 80% completion (as required to list as completed project)?  Will there be some provision for this?  A widening of the definition of PBC2?
	Subfactor 1.3 (e) requires experience performing PBC tasks.  Performance based or end-state type contracting is not limited to AFCEE contracts.  Any private or government customers may demonstrate this type of work.

	29
	Evaluation
	Section M, 2.4 What labor rates will be used for evaluation – only those in Table 6.2, page L-16?
	Yes, only those in Section L, Table 6.2 will be used for evaluation purposes.  However, additional labor rate categories will be negotiated and included in the contract.

	30
	Misc
	After Section M is a blank page with a different Contract number in the footer.  Should this page be omitted?
	Yes.

	31
	Misc
	Have you decided to go with the Contractor School and if so, have you settled on dates?
	Yes, we will have a Contractor Proposal School.  The date has not been finalized.  When finalized, it will be posted on the web and an email will be sent out to all WERC website registrants.

	32
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, 2.1.4, Teaming:  Subpart (a) states that the Prime and its First Tier Subcontractors are considered a “team” when a teaming agreement or letter of intent is provided. Subpart (b) implies that unless a teaming agreement or letter of intent is provided, the capabilities of a subcontractor will not be considered.  This is reiterated in Section L3.5, Teaming Arrangements and/or Letters of Intent.  However, Section L5.3.3, Past Performance Information Sheets, subsection (c), states that each Prime and Teaming Partner should submit 10 Past Performance Information Sheets, while each major or critical subcontractor should submit 5 Past Performance Sheets.  If only subcontractors that submit teaming agreements are considered, and such subcontractors are then considered “team members”, who should submit only 5 Past Performance Sheets?
	We have changed to the requirement to state that each team member, as defined in FAR 9.601, will submit 10 Past Performance Information Sheets.

The requirement for 5 sheets has been deleted.

	33
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, 2.3.9.1(b), Page Size: Does the line spacing apply to text only, i.e., not tables, charts, graphs, or figures? Also, we request that this does not apply to forms (i.e., the Past Performance Information Sheet, Consent Letter, etc.).
	Line spacing applies to text only.  Tables, charts, graphs, figures, etc. count towards the page limit.  Page size does not apply to the forms that the Government provides the format for, i.e. Past Performance Information Sheet, Past Performance Questionnaires, Consent Letters, etc.  However, the format should not be altered on these forms.

	34
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, 5.0. Please clarify if submission of the Past Performance Volume within 15 days of the RFP issuance date is a mandatory requirement.  Please clarify if this is to include the entire volume or only the Past Performance Questionnaires (as specified in 5.3.4).   In the event that the Past Performance Volume is submitted within 15 days of RFP issuance will the same volume also need to be included in the hard and electronic submissions due on the final RFP date?
	The way it is written right now, the Past Performance Volume will be due 15 calendar days prior to the proposal due date.  The completed Past Performance Questionnaires are due by the proposal due date.  The due dates are mandatory.  

Only the hard copy will be required to be submitted early.  The electronic copy will be consolidated onto the proposal CD and due on the proposal due date.

However, we are considering making everything due within 30 days.  Is it reasonable to ask for this Past Performance information within 15 days?

	35
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, 5.1, Early Proposal Information.  This section states that the Past Performance volume should be submitted 15 days after RFP release.    However, section L5.3.4 states that the Past Performance volume should be submitted 15 days prior to final RFP due date.  Which is correct?
	The Past Performance Volume will be due 15 calendar days prior to the proposal due date.  The completed Past Performance Questionnaires are due by the proposal due date.

	36
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, 5.2 and 5.3, Relevant Contracts and Specific Content: Should the information requested in these two paragraphs be provided solely in the Past Performance Information Sheet, or also in the narrative? If it is to be provided in the narrative, in which section should it be provided (Organizational Structure Change History or Summary Page)?
	This should be provided solely in the Past performance Information Sheets.  If the current format does not provide enough space, please suggest a more appropriate format.

	37
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, 5.3.4.  Does AFCEE foresee changing or altering the Past Performance Questionnaire before the final RFP issuance date?  
	Yes, please give suggestions.

	38
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, 5.3.5.  Does AFCEE foresee changing or altering the Consent Letter format or content before issuance of the final RFP?
	Yes, please give suggestions.

	39
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, 5.3.6.  Does AFCEE foresee changing or altering the content or format of the Client Authorization Letters before the issuance of the final RFP?
	Yes, please give suggestions.

	40
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, Attachment L-3, Past Performance Information Sheet: Under "Other Information" it is requested that "For each of the applicable subfactors under Mission Capability factor in Section M, illustrate how your experience on this program applies to that subfactor." Several of these subfactors refer to team resources/abilities. 

Question:  How should this be addressed in the context of describing a project that doesn't include the same team members being proposed for the WERC?
	In terms of team members, for one contract, the most relevant will be one performed with some or all of the same members working as a team.  If the team members are not the same, focus mainly on that portion of the contract that was accomplished by your team member and relate the performance to the overall success of the project, the team members ability to coordinate with other contractors, flexibility, etc.  If the team member was the prime, discuss the management capabilities and ability to coordinate the effort.

	41
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, Attachment L-3. May we consolidate the formatting of the Past Performance Information sheet to maximize the space for addressing all Mission Capability Factors within the three pages per format?
	No formatting changes will be allowed after the final RFP is released.  Questions, suggestions, and changes to the format are welcome now.

	42
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, Attachment L-3. Past Performance Information Sheet: May this form be reproduced and reformatted as long as the form headings are the same?
	No formatting changes will be allowed after the final RFP is released.  Suggestions and changes to the format and questions are welcome now.

	43
	Past Performance
	Section L ITO, Attachment L-4. On the Past and Present Performance Questionnaire, where/how should the company that performed the work be identified?
	The final format will include a place for this.  Suggestions to the format are welcome.

	44
	Price
	Section L ITO, 2.3.8.4, ACO and DCAA Copies: Is the submittal of electronic or hard copies at the discretion of the Offeror (and/or the ACO or DCAA preference)?
	Electronic or hard copy submittals will be at the discretion of the ACO or DCAA.  Price evaluation determination will affect whether DCAA will need copies or not.

	45
	Price
	Section L ITO, 6.2 (a) "...all labor categories identified in Attachment I."  There is no Attachment I.  Should this refer to Table 6.2?  If not, will the government provide Attachment I?
	Yes, it should refer to Table 6.2

	46
	Price
	Section L ITO, 6.2 (d) "Additional labor categories not included... will require the offeror to identify the category..."  Is this statement referring to task orders after contract award?  If not, please clarify which labor categories this may be referencing.
	Still under evaluation.

	47
	Price
	Section L ITO, 6.2 Will the final contract include negotiated labor rates?
	Probably.  This is still under determination.

	48
	Price
	Section L ITO, 6.2, Burdened Labor Rates, Subparagraph (d) states that additional labor categories not included in Table 6.2 will require the offeror to identify the category that closely resembles the non-listed category.  We assume that this means labor disciplines such as a Designer, and not levels of listed labor disciplines such as Electrical Engineer – Junior level.  Is this assumption correct?
	Yes, but still under evaluation.

	49
	Scope
	Please clarify what will constitute “inherently governmental roles and responsibilities” under Performance Based Remediation approaches in the WERC especially with regard to specific document reviews and signatures, and interface with regulatory bodies and community stakeholders.  
	Inherently governmental functions are defined in FAR 5.703 Policy.  Inherently governmental responsibilities will remain with the government.  Under performance based task orders, contractors may negotiate directly with regulators to reach TO objectives.

	50
	Small Business
	Section L ITO, 7.2 Is the information requested in Volume V, Section 7.2 - Mission

Capability also covered in the Section 7.3- Small Business Subcontracting Plan?
	No.  You must specifically address the items listed in Section L, 7.2.1, Large Business or 7.2.2 Small Businesses, as applicable.  Large businesses must also provide a Small Business Subcontracting Plan in accordance with FAR 19.7.

	51
	Work Projection
	To what extent does AFCEE anticipate or project environmental remediation work in Europe and nations of the Pacific Rim over the course of the WERC?
	There are projected amounts of work in the future but these are estimates and not minimum guaranteed levels.  The majority of the work is expected in CONUS.



	52
	Work Projection
	To what extent does AFCEE anticipate or project Military Family Housing construction work over the course of the WERC?
	There are projected amounts of work in the future but these are estimates and not minimum guaranteed levels.  Please note that the traditional requirements are highly variable.


